

Higher Education Admissions Procedure



Higher Education Admissions Procedure

Policy Owner: ELT

Date Approved: 3 July 2023

Next Review: April 2024

Responsibility for Review: Head of Quality

Policy Review Frequency: Annual

Applicable to staff: Yes/No

Applicable to students: Yes/No

Publish on College website: Yes/No

Consultation:

Undertaken with:	Yes/No:	Date:
Board/Committee		
ELT	Yes	3 July 2023 16 May 2023
CMT		
Unions		
Students		
Employees		
Employers/Stakeholders	Yes	13 March 2023

Any Associated Documentation, for Reference:

FE Admissions Policy, Adult Admissions Procedure, Apprenticeship Admissions Procedures, Safeguarding Policy, Fitness to Study Procedure,16-18 Admissions Procedure, Access and Participation Statement, HE Course Fees and Charges, Student Protection Plan

ELT SIGN-OFF: Marie Haworth, Vice Principal Quality, Teaching, Learning & Learner Support



Contents

Scope and purpose of the procedure	4
Changes to published information	4
Guiding Principles	4
Roles and Responsibilities	5
Admissions Process	6
Applications	6
Entry requirements	6
Contextual admissions practice	6
Assessing applications	7
Additional assessments to support contextualised admissions	7
Special Considerations	7
Applicants requiring additional support	8
Non-academic considerations	8
Decisions	9
Appeals and Complaints	11
Access and Participation	11
Reporting	11
Appendix 1 - HE Admissions Process	13
Appendix 2 - Higher Apprenticeships Admissions Statement	15

Scope and purpose of the procedure

- 1. This procedure applies to all applications made by prospective learners to any of Preston College full or part time higher education courses regardless of background or characteristic.
- 2. This procedure takes into account guiding principles of effective admissions practice (QAA, 2018), statutory and legislative requirements. There may be occasions where this procedure will be superseded by the relevant policies and procedures relating to these responsibilities. The procedure sets out Preston College's approach to deliver a fair, accessible and transparent admissions service to all applicants who have the potential to succeed in higher education.
- 3. Applicants applying for a Higher Education programme awarded by the University of Central Lancashire (UCLan) are also covered by UCLan's Admissions Policy and Applicant Complaints Procedures. Details of UCLan's policy can be found at: www.uclan.ac.uk
- 4. Higher apprenticeships are considered firstly by the applicant's employer in consultation with the College. Therefore, certain activities will deviate from the standard admissions procedure and are covered in the complementary Higher Apprenticeships Admissions Statement.

Changes to published information

- 5. Where a programme does not run or where there are significant changes to a programme between the offer being made and the student commencing the programme, applicants will be advised of this and the options available to them.
- 6. In the event of an offer being made for a course still in the pre-validation stage any advertising materials and any offers must make this clear.
- 7. In the event of an offer being made subject to learner numbers on programme any advertising materials and any offers must make this clear. The College will attempt to offer alternative suitable provision, if available, where course numbers cannot be met.
- 8. In these instances, the College's Student Protection Plan should be followed: Policies & Procedures Preston College

Guiding Principles

- 9. Preston College's HE Admissions Procedure is informed by six guiding principles of effective practice:
 - Policies and procedures for applications, selection and admission to higher education programmes are transparent and accessible.
 - As a higher education provider Preston College uses fair, reliable and appropriate assessment methods that enables us to select learners with the potential to complete their programme successfully.

- Preston College reduces or removes unnecessary barriers for prospective learners.
- Information provided to prospective learners for recruitment and widening access purposes supports learners in making informed decisions.
- All colleagues and partners engaged in the delivery of admissions, recruitment and widening access are appropriately trained and resourced.
- Preston College continually enhances widening access strategies and policies in line with local and national guidance.

Roles and Responsibilities

- 10. The HE Quality Manager ensures that the College has appropriate admission procedures in place; in line with sector conventions, statutory and legal requirements and that these are effectively implemented and monitored. They are also responsible for ensuring this procedure is accessible to colleagues, applicants and learners and that appropriate training is in place for colleagues involved in making admissions decisions.
- 11. All colleagues involved in any aspect of the admissions process are responsible for following this procedure.

Learning and Curriculum Administrators (HE)

12. Learning and Curriculum Administrators with responsibility for HE provision receive and process applications for all full-time and part-time HE programmes. It is their responsibility to enter accurate data onto the College's system and pass applications to the relevant Recruitment, Admissions and Careers Advisors and academic staff at both the College (and where appropriate the partner University for decisions).

Recruitment, Admissions and Careers Advisors (HE)

13. Recruitment, Admissions and Careers Advisors with responsibility for HE provision, assess all applications against published entry criteria as part of the decision-making process and liaise with designated HE academic colleagues if a decision cannot be made on the basis of formal qualifications. They will, when requested, arrange interviews or auditions for students in consultation with academic staff.

Curriculum Leaders

14. The Curriculum Leaders with responsibility for HE provision apply their academic and professional judgement throughout the HE admissions process and are responsible for adhering to this procedure. Where a decision cannot be made on the basis of meeting the standard entry criteria; curriculum leaders are responsible for referring applications through contextual admission practice or special cases. They will when required, provide assessment materials to support the decision-making process.

HE Admissions Group

15. Contextual admissions applications that are considered by representatives of the HE Admissions Group. All applications require approval from two members of the HE Admissions Group before an offer is made. The HE Admissions Group is made up of Vice Principal Quality, Teaching, Learning & Learner Support, Head of Quality, HE Quality Manager, Head/Assistant Head of School, and Curriculum Leader of the course. Meetings are held virtually, as required to ensure that all applications can be considered within 5 working days to align with the time frame for non-standard applications as described in Stage 1 of the HE Admissions Process.

Admissions Process

Applications

- 16. Potential applicants may contact the College and obtain information on courses via the College website, telephone or in person at reception. In addition, the College holds a number of open days where applicants may meet the staff who teach on the programme they are considering. The College produces a prospectus that contains programmes the College will offer together with information on welfare, guidance and support available. The website also contains detailed course leaflets which gives prospective students detailed information about the courses. All applications are to come via Preston College website (including level 3 progressing learners and higher apprenticeship candidates).
- 17. Applicants are responsible for providing the College with accurate information on which it will make admissions decisions. Any student found to have provided false information or to have plagiarised their assessments are at risk of having an offer withdrawn.

Entry requirements

18. Criteria for admission are approved as part of the College's (or awarding body's) course approval process. Entry requirements for each programme are set out in course leaflets and on the College website. Standard entry requirements normally indicate the expected grades and/or UCAS points a student should hold. Entry requirements may be changed for individual students who can demonstrate alternative qualifications or experience that leads tutors to believe that they will be successful on the programme.

Contextual admissions practice

19. Contextual admissions may help the college to identify and encourage students from underrepresented groups, allowing them to take account of the circumstances to assess their attainment and potential which may lead to the college adjusting their standard offer. This practice of uses additional information (such as an additional assessment or non-academic information),

which allows the college to identify applicants with the greatest potential to succeed in higher education, rather than relying on exam results alone.

Assessing applications

- 20. Admission to a programme is based on the academic and professional judgement of colleagues involved in the admissions process. The following standard criteria is typically used to assess an application:
 - Academic qualifications (including prior and predicated grades)
 - Relevant work/life experience and/or knowledge (where appropriate)
 - Contextual admissions practice
 - Programme specific criteria (e.g. personal statement, audition, interview, satisfactory DBS)*

Additional assessments to support contextualised admissions

21. Assessments to support contextualised admissions are designed to be fair and inclusive, they are used to enable applicants to demonstrate their potential to succeed in HE. They typically focus on the skills that applicants will need to do well at HE level, such as critical thinking, problem solving and how to apply subject knowledge. The assessments are developed and internally verified by the relevant subject tutors and are designed to assess the applicant's ability to draw on their existing subject knowledge and skills.

Special Considerations

Transfer to Preston College for part of an undergraduate programme

22. The College will consider application from students wishing to transfer to Preston College for part of an undergraduate programme. In this instance the Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) procedure should be followed. Policies & Procedures - Preston College. Applicants should contact the Recruitment, Admissions and Careers Advisor (HE) who will, along with academic colleagues, work to support any applicant wishing to make an RPL application. Students who may be eligible to claim accreditation for prior certified learning (APL) towards a UCLan awarded programme will be supported to prepare the necessary paperwork for consideration and approval by UCLan. Details of UCLAN's policy can be found at https://www.uclan.ac.uk/study/accreditation-of-prior-learning

Applications to Preston College top-up degrees (awarded by UCLan)

23. Preston College will consider applications to top-up degrees awarded by UCLan on a case-by-case basis. For example; where an applicant has completed a foundation degree elsewhere or where a foundation degree graduate has not immediately progressed on to a top-up degree.

Applicants requiring additional support

24. The College adopts an inclusive approach to learning, offering high quality teaching which is tailored to individual requirements and aims to promote independence and the achievement of positive outcomes. Where an applicant has declared a disability or need for additional support, the Advisor/Administrator will liaise with relevant colleagues to provide information to applicants and support at events held throughout the admission process such as open events, interviews and auditions.

Applicants with a Disability

25. Preston College welcomes applications from disabled students and from those with specific learning differences; their applications will be considered on the same academic grounds as those of other students. The College will contact applicants who indicate a disability on their application and subsequently accept an offer. The College will invite such applicants to discuss their support needs with a member of the Student Support and Wellbeing team so that any necessary support can be arranged. Further information may be found at: Student Services - Preston College

Applicants who have been in Local Authority Care (Looked After Children/In Care)

26. The College welcomes applications from students who have had experience of being in local authority care. Applicants who indicate they have been in care on their application will be contacted by the Learner Support Team to discuss any support or needs they may have. Further information may be found at: Student Student Student Services - Preston College

Reasonable adjustments

- 27. Where required, reasonable adjustments will be made to assessment methods used in the selection process to ensure the provision of equal opportunities for applicants with disabilities or learning difficulties. Where entrance to a programme is dependent upon demonstrating a competency standard then the standard must be:
 - Appropriate and necessary
 - Applied equally to disabled and non-disabled applicants

Non-academic considerations

Criminal Convictions

28. Preston College aims to create a safe and healthy environment. This includes all those studying and working on and off site or using any of its services. In addition we have a duty of care to those under the age of 18 years of age and those deemed vulnerable and at risk. Therefore, we need to know about those applicants who have unspent convictions related to serious offences. If any

applicant has a serious unspent conviction, they will be asked to complete a confidential form before completing their enrolment. Confidentially the Designated Protection Officer will make a decision as to whether the applicant can enrol. If an applicant fails to reveal an unspent conviction any enrolment agreement with the College will be terminated with immediate effect.

Disclosure and Barring Service

- 29. Some programmes mandate a satisfactory DBS before starting the programme. This is set out in the programme specification as part of the validation process. In such cases, this will be made clear in any published entry requirements and in any resulting offers.
- 30. In cases where information of a relevant non-academic nature concerning a candidate for admission to the College is such that a decision is made to either reject an application or revoke an existing offer of admission on these grounds, or where the recruitment, admissions and careers advisor believes such information should be further reviewed, the recruitment, admissions and careers advisor or academic member of staff shall refer the application to the Designated Protection Officer for consideration.

Decisions

31. The following decisions may be made:

Standard offers: Recruitment, Admissions and Careers Advisors will assess applications to higher education against published entry criteria. Where an applicant meets the criteria, an offer will be made pending final confirmation of examination results, additional and non-academic requirements.

Non-Standard offers: Where an applicant does not meet published entry requirements or where relevant work/life experience needs to be assessed, advisors will liaise with the appropriate curriculum leader with a decision being made in 10 working days (where the applicant has provided all information required to make a decision).

Contextual offers: An offer made on the basis of contextual data or participation in an outreach event. This might include:

- an offer based on advertised grades
- an offer at a grade or more lower than advertised
- an unconditional offer (see below)
- an offer linked to a bridging assessment
- 32. If an offer can be made it will be one of the following:
 - I. Conditional where an applicant has been initially assessed as suitable for the programme but still needs to meet the requirements, for example, not yet achieving a specified result with their current qualification.

- II. Unconditional where an applicant has met all entry criteria and unconditional offer may be made. Preston College does not issue unconditional offers to applicants who have not yet met their entry requirements.
- 33. All applicants receiving an offer will receive a letter outlining in details the conditions of the offer. This will include the details of any specific criteria that needs to be fulfilled before an applicant can enrol onto their programme. It will include a link to Preston College's Terms and Conditions, Appeals Procedure, Complaints Procedure and Student Protection Plan.

Rejections

- 34. Reject: A **standard rejection** decision may be made, but is not limited to the following reasons:
 - Failure to complete the application form correctly
 - Knowingly providing false or fraudulent information at any point of the application process
 - Failure to attend an audition, workshop or interview or provide a portfolio (digital or physical)
 - Failure to fulfil academic or non- academic entry requirements, for example not having the required qualifications, not providing a satisfactory DBS or medical clearance before starting the programme or not providing evidence of securing relevant employment or placement.
 - Failure to provide evidence of qualifications they have achieved in a reasonable timeframe as requested by Preston College
- 35. All **non-standard rejections** are reviewed by the HE Quality Manager in liaison with the Head of School. All applicants who receive a reject decision will be provided with feedback as to why their application was unsuccessful.
- 36. The Learning and Curriculum Administration Team will keep a copy of all rejections, together with the reasons for rejection. This will enable the College to give an unsuccessful candidate any explanation of how the decision was reached.

Feedback on applications

- 37. Feedback will normally include generic information to help applicants understand the means by which applicants are selected for the course to which they have applied, but a certain amount of specific information on an individual's application may be available on request.
- 38. Feedback will not be provided to any third party including, but not limited to, a parent, agent or other supporter.

Applicants wishing to reapply

39. Applicants who are unsuccessful or who do not take up their place with Preston College are welcome to reapply. Previous admissions decisions will not be taken into account, however, there will be circumstances where the College's Fitness to Study or Fitness to Practice procedure will take precedence.

Appeals and Complaints

- 40. An admission appeal is defined as a challenge to an admissions decision. This may be a decision to reject an application or the conditions of an offer. An admissions appeal is not:
 - General feedback
 - An expression of dissatisfaction with a service you have received from the College
- 41. Applicants wishing to appeal an admissions decision should follow the College admissions appeal procedure: Policies & Procedures Preston College
- 42. An applicant who is not satisfied with the way in which the College has dealt with their application may complain using the College's complaints scheme available on the College website.

Access and Participation

- 43. Widening Access and Participation is a fundamental element of the College strategy and we are passionate about ensuring that students from under-represented groups and those from disadvantaged backgrounds have fair access to higher education. Our <u>Access and Participation Statement</u> outlines how Preston College will facilitate access to HE for key student groups.
- 44. Whilst applicants can disclose information at any point in the admissions process we encourage them to provide this information at the point of application to ensure that we can contact them to discuss what adjustments can be made, what support they will require once they arrive and information about support such as additional funding that might be available to them.

Reporting

45. In implementing this procedure, the College will ensure that any personal data relating to the application of this policy will be obtained, processed and destroyed in line with the principles outlined in the General Data Protection Regulations and supplementary enacting Data Protection Legislation. The College is committed to being transparent about how it collects and processes the personal data of its learners, employees, visitors and other stakeholders to meet its data protection obligations. The College will ensure all processing is lawful, fair and transparent and individuals are informed of the legal basis for processing their data. Further information relating to the College's compliance

of the General Data Protection Regulations can be found in the College's Data Protection Policy.



Appendix 1 - HE Admissions Process

Stage 1

All applications are to come via Preston College website and will receive an immediate email response to confirm receipt of the application.

Applicants can then expect a follow-up communication from a Recruitment, Admissions and Careers Advisor within 5 working days of their application being received. This communication will provide information regarding the programme and evidence required to meet published entry criteria (including where appropriate evidence of relevant work/life experience and/or knowledge.

The Recruitment, Admissions and Careers Advisor will conduct checks to verify qualifications submitted as evidence through the Learning Records Service.

Following an initial assessment of their evidence, applicants will be contacted by the Recruitment, Admissions and Careers Advisor within 5 working days (for standard applications) or 10 working days (for non-standard applications) of their application being received. This communication will include information regarding further evidence required to meet entry criteria and interview arrangements.

Current Preston College students who have applied to progress to study a higher education programme will have their results checked by an Advisor in liaison with the Achievements team.

Stage 2

Interviews will be arranged by the Recruitment, Admissions and Careers Advisor (HE). Applicants can expect to receive an invite to interview via letter, email or text that will detail the time and date of the arranged interview.

Where applicable, applicants will be notified to bring original copies of prerequisite qualifications to be checked during the interview process.

Applicants who do not attend their interview appointment will be contacted by the Recruitment, Admissions and Careers Advisor (HE) who will attempts to make contact with them and offer an alternative appointment, time and date.

Should the Advisor be unable to make contact with the applicants their application will be automatically withdrawn after a period of 6 weeks.

If an applicant attends an interview/audition they will then receive either an Offer letter or a Rejection letter as <u>detailed below</u>.

If an applicant is successful at interview then the Recruitment, Admissions and Careers Advisor will seek approval from Curriculum Leader for their application.

Stage 3

Applicants who successfully gain a Conditional Offer will receive an offer letter within 10 working days of their interview, detailing any conditions they are required to meet or offering a place on their programme without conditions.

Applicants on meeting the conditions of an offer will receive a confirmatory letter.

Unsuccessful applicants will receive a letter within 10 working days of their interview.

For applicants who have disclosed additional support needs during the interview process, and have received an offer, they will be contacted by phone normally within 2 working days to discuss further support.

Once an applicant confirms acceptance of a place they will receive pre-programme academic support materials and further information about their course.

Prior to our main enrolment season, any applicant who has received an offer, has met all conditions and accepted, will be enrolled or sent a letter to be invited to enrol.



Appendix 2 - Higher Apprenticeships Admissions Statement

Applications

Applicants are considered by Employers first and in consultation with the College. All eligible applicants are identified through employer selection processes. Applicants who are successful in the Employers' selection processes should apply through the College website and a member of the learning and curriculum administration team will verify the application.

Entry requirements

Absolute minimum entry requirements are developed by the Institute for Apprenticeships (working with trailblazer employer groups at subject level) published at the Institute for Apprenticeships and Technical Education as "Standards".

The College and the Employers it delivers Apprenticeships with may also set additional entry requirement thresholds. These criteria must be approved through the College/Awarding Partner course approval processes and will be published on the College website.

Eligibility Requirements

Full eligibility requirements are published in the Education and Skills Funding Agency Funding Rules which are updated every year. <u>Education and Skills Funding Agency - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)</u>

Employer-related requirements

Individual employers may have specific requirements which may be different or additional to those published in the apprenticeship standards or the entry requirements set by the College. For example, an employer may require an apprentice to have worked for the company for a minimum amount of time. Requirements such as this will be communicated to applicants through the employers' materials advertising apprenticeship opportunities.

Academic requirements

Entry requirements for each programme are set out in course leaflets and on the College website. Applicants who don't meet this criterion may need to undertake further assessment; such applicants will be admitted only if the assessment demonstrates that they have sufficient skills necessary to successfully engage with and complete the course and therefore, the apprenticeship.

Applicants requiring additional support

Applicants should also discuss reasonable adjustments with their employers. Apprentices are not eligible for Disabled Students' Allowance; where financial support may be required they should discuss possible eligibility for additional ESFA funding with the College.

Offers

The College will determine whether any exemptions must be applied and will notify the applicant of its formal decision. This formal decision will be communicated to the applicant by the employer and the Business Development Lead.

Applicants who do not meet the conditions of their offer before the course (including employment, academic, contractual documentation completion and relevant Professional, Statutory and Regulatory Bodies' requirements) commences shall be considered, in the first instance, by the curriculum leader who may decide to either accept the applicant onto the course or escalate the decision. In the case of escalation, final decisions will be made by the following joint consideration by the Head of School and the Head of Apprenticeships.

Applicants who are not eligible for the Higher Apprenticeship may be able to apply for the for the academic qualification.

The College reserves the right to withdraw any offer made on the basis of an application containing fraudulent, incomplete or misleading information.

Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL)

In line with Education and Skills Funding Agency eligibility and funding criteria, where it is identified that a successful applicant already has prior learning which maps to the teaching and learning outcomes of the apprenticeship, this will be noted and where necessary the content and cost of the course offered may be reduced to reflect this

Feedback and applications and decisions

Feedback for apprenticeship candidates and employer sponsored learners will be provided on request to potential employers. The College will not provide feedback to applicants who are unsuccessful in the Employer Selection process.